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Brooks Development Authority 
Request for Proposals 

Asbestos Abatement Services for Buildings 110, 125 & 130 
Bid #06232021-005 

Questions 

1. Does the owner prefer to receive unit pricing, as part of proposal, for undiscovered 
quantities of ACM? 

ANSWER: Yes.

2. Will RFCI be allowed for areas of floor tile? 

ANSWER: Yes, provided that the Contractor can demonstrate the ability to follow 
the RFCI recommended work practices for removal of resilient floor coverings. 
NOTE: For Building 125, work area containments under negative pressure greater 
than 0.02 mm/Hg will be required. 

3. There was not a clear response whether water and electricity is available at the buildings. 
Can you clarify so we can provide accurate pricing if generators/water needs to be 
included? 

ANSWER: Electric power will be available in each building.  Water service will be 
restored at Bldgs. 110 and 130 for use during the abatement project (See Note #1 
below).  UIW staff will check the buildings for water leaks and broken water pipes 
and repair/cap them after water service has been restored and prior to abatement 
pre-demo and mobilization activities. 
CRITICAL NOTE #1: Should bldgs. 110 and 130 prove impractical to restore 
water service, contractors need to submit a separate cost schedule to include 
providing water in the event capping pipes is not feasible.  
CRITICAL NOTE #2: For work areas inside Bldg. 125, the asbestos-abatement 
contractor is not permitted to utilize building outlets or breaker boxes and must 
provide their own electrical power connections through temporary panel boxes 
and receptacles installed by a licensed electrician.
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4. Bldg. 110: Although the project was mentioned as a full gut, we wanted to confirm the 
plan to abate the asbestos drywall/joint compound that is above the ceiling grid (attached 
to the underside of the decking). A large amount of wiring, HVAC, piping, and misc. 
mechanical will need to be removed to abate the drywall above the ceiling grid (attached 
to the underside of the concrete decking underside). Please confirm if demo of all this 
material during abatement is acceptable. Or, does the owner prefer to abate this materials 
with all mechanical in place? 

ANSWER:  It is recommended that all wiring, HVAC, piping, and misc. mechanical 
be removed to abate the drywall above the ceiling grid (attached to the underside 
of the concrete decking) unless otherwise specified by the owner (UIW). 

CRITICAL NOTE: All electrical wiring and data cables must be rendered inactive 
and/or de-energized by licensed electrician(s) and IT personnel prior to removal. 

5. Bldg 125: What is the plan for exhausting during abatement activities on floors with no 
windows or doors to the exterior? 

ANSWER: At this time, the Contractor may use the pipe and other utility chases 
to route the exhaust to the penthouse or basement mechanical area to vent to the 
outside of the building.  Use of the stairwell and stairwell windows to route negative 
air exhaust is currently under consideration.  (This is for floors 2 & 3 which have 
no other means of exhaust.  The 4th floor is secured from the stairway.  The first 
floor can be exhausted via existing windows.) 

6. Bldg 125: Since this building is occupied, will we be given a full floor at a time? Or half 
a floor?      

ANSWER: Yes, you will have access to a whole floor at a time.

7. Bldg 125: Since this building is occupied, does the owner prefer to receive 
night/weekend work as an option? 

ANSWER:  The preferred work schedule is Monday thru Friday, 7:30am – 4:30pm 
and asbestos-abatement activities conducted in such a manner as to minimize 
disturbances to tenants, occupants, visitors, customers, or general public.  
Exceptions will be considered depending on work area conditions and location (i.e., 
certain areas of Bldg. 125).  
NOTE: For the purposes of mandatory work area air monitoring, workers should 
begin exiting the work area 30 minutes prior to the end of shift.
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8. All buildings: Will we be responsible for content removal/demo or will the owners clear 
all contents before abatement work? 

ANSWER:  Unless otherwise specified, prior to mobilization and abatement 
activities, the Owner (UIW) will clear all loose contents (furniture, equipment, etc.) 
they wish to keep.  Any moveable items left behind will be considered refuse and 
properly disposed by the Contractor.  Contractor should consider the salvage value 
of items not removed by the Owner (UIW).  This salvage will be made available to 
the successful Contractor.

9. Bldg 110: Are we responsible for demo of ceiling tiles and grid? 

ANSWER: Unless otherwise specified by the Owner, the answer at this time is yes. 
Also, see questions #4 and #18. 

10. Can the sign in sheet be provided for the pre bid walk? 

ANSWER: Yes.

11. Does Brooks City have a est. magnitude for the project? 

ANSWER: Please be more specific… does the question refer to time constraints, 
project complexity, financial, etc.?

12. When removing ACM from any finished material, does the finish material need to be 
replaced for the building in use? ex. Gyp board, tile, celling grid, etc... 

ANSWER: No.  All replacement materials and installation (put back) activities will 
be performed by the UIW general contractor after abatement activities have been 
completed.

13. Is bonding required for the project if the amount exceeds a certain amount? 

ANSWER: Yes. The asbestos-abatement contractor must be bonded and provide 
proof with the bid documents. 

14. After removing the ACM insulation from the duct in any of the buildings do the ducts 
need to be reinsulated, more so the current building in use? 

ANSWER:  For bldgs. 110, 125 and 130, the answer is no at this time. The 
abatement contractor will not be required to reinsulate mechanical systems, water 
pipes, etc. where asbestos-containing materials have been removed.
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15. Can you help guide us with the statement in this RFP:  Small Business Economic 
Development Advocacy (SBEDA): (Maximum Points – 20 Points) 

a. Under the SBEDA goal do we need to provide 20% of total contract amount or 
20% of participation?  Is the SBEDA ordinance required due City funds? 

ANSWER:  The 20 points is the maximum points that you can receive for 
meeting the SWMBE Goal of 54.8%.  This is Brooks’ SBEDA policy 
approved by the Brooks Board of Directors. 

b. It is the policy of Brooks to encourage involvement of qualified Small, Woman, 
Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (SWMBE) and Local Business 
Enterprises in soliciting and awarding competitive contracts in accordance with 
the specific goals adopted by the Brooks Board of Directors. Brooks has 
established an overall contracting goal of 54.80%.  For the SWMBE goal, 
companies that are already certified, would they cover the 54.80% goal?  

ANSWER:  Yes, if a company is already certified and is performing at least 
51% of the project they would receive full points for the SBEDA criteria. 

c. If the SBEDA ordinance is required, do we need to follow the information 
below:  SBEDA COMPLIANCE:  All prime contractors and subcontractors 
participating on a City contract with SBEDA contract requirements must utilize 
the City Contract Management System (CCMS). This system captures the 
utilization of small, minority, and women-owned businesses on City contracts 
and serves as a monitoring tool for prime contractors who are required to meet 
SBEDA subcontracting requirements. 

ANSWER:  No, that is the City’s policy.  Brooks has their own policy and 
contract management system. 

16. Can non-asbestos demo be done prior to containment set up such as ceilings, carpet, 
doors, cove base, cabinets? 

ANSWER: Yes, as long as adequate precautions are taken to avoid damage to 
asbestos-containing materials.

17. Who is responsible for disposal of items left in the bldgs.  

ANSWER: Items that need to be disposed in order for the abatement work to occur 
will be done by the abatement Contractor.  Also, see question #8.
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18. Can the data cables and other wiring be removed during ceiling demo in bldg, 110, 130. 
to avoid additional cleaning during abatement. 

ANSWER: Unless otherwise specified by the Owner (UIW), data cables and other 
wiring may be removed and properly disposed by the abatement contractor during 
ceiling demolition activities. Prior to removal, data cables and other wiring must 
be rendered inactive and/or de-energized by licensed electrician(s) and IT 
personnel in bldgs. 110 and 130. 

19. In bldg. 110, are the 2nd floor exhaust fans allowed be removed to install negative air 
exhaust ducts? 

ANSWER: Yes, provided measures to avoid damage to rooftop membrane and 
flashing materials are undertaken.  Exhaust fans will need to be replaced or other 
owner permitted work done to render these areas weatherproof once work is 
complete. 

20. The pipe insulation that is not ACM which will be left in place. However, if during final 
clearance cannot pass PCM clearance, will clearance testing by TEM be utilized?  

ANSWER: Yes.

21. Who will be responsible for the electricity & make safe of utilities? 

ANSWER:  UIW staff.

22. Who is responsible for lighting after power is shut off for make safe? 

ANSWER: The Contractor. Electricity will be available for each building. It is the 
contractor’s responsibility to provide adequate power through temporary panel 
boxes and receptacles. All temporary electrical service connections shall be 
installed by a licensed electrician. 

23. For Building 125 will there be a phasing plan implemented? 

ANSWER: Yes.  A schedule will be established at a later date.

24. Is there going to be water & power for all buildings? 

ANSWER: Yes.
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25. If not which buildings will or will not have power? 

ANSWER:  All project buildings will have power available. 

26. What is the potential start date for this project? 

ANSWER:  We do not expect work for this project to start prior to October 2021.

27. Will all 3 buildings have to be worked on at the same time or will it be done on after 
another? 

ANSWER: The buildings do NOT need to be worked on at the same time.  They 
may be worked in succession (one following the other), not simultaneously.  A 
similar approach must take place for bldg. 125. One section or floor at a time in 
succession.  To minimize disruption to the occupants and building personnel, not 
more than one active abatement work area at a time will be allowed in bldg. 125. 

28. Will there be additional options for negative exhaust besides the stairway doors building 
125? 

ANSWER:  Utility and pipe chases can be used to route exhaust lines up to the 
penthouse or to the basement mechanical space in order to vent outside the 
building.

29. Are the quantities in the specifications reflective of double layer or single layer of all 
material? 

ANSWER: The quantities of asbestos-containing floor tile and mastic are based on 
the square footage of coverage, not amounts of materials to be removed (i.e., Room 
XYZ found to contain 200SF of two layers of ACM floor tile).

30. After removal of drywall from framing do we remove framing or do we leave it in place? 

ANSWER:  Complete removal and proper disposal of the affected drywall system, 
including drywall framing and stud walls, is preferred due to the chance that 
asbestos-containing flooring materials may exist beneath the bottom support 
railings of the stud walls. The current building Owners (UIW) shall have the final 
decision if any stud wall systems to remain in place prior to abatement activities.

31. Will a set of drawings be provided for the hidden mechanical room & chase throughout 
building? 

ANSWER: The drawings that have been provided are all that are available at this 
time.
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32. If an area shown on a drawing does not have ACM in that location, are we still 
responsible for abating in that area? 

ANSWER:  The Contractor is responsible for abating ACM identified in the survey 
reports.  If no ACM has been identified in an area then no work is to take place in 
that area. However, the bidding asbestos-abatement contractor is reminded that 
the asbestos survey and drawings were completed as thoroughly as possible given 
the information made available (i.e., drawings, plans, previous surveys, etc.) and 
conditions encountered during the most recent asbestos survey.  Prior to 
abatement activities, specific areas of concern or suspect materials should be noted 
and brought forth by the Contractor for further consideration before the decision 
to abate or not abate is made by the Owner or Owner’s representative. 

33. Bldg. 130 - Do the 2,250 SF of Transite Erosion Control Panels need to be removed? If 
they do, where are they located? 

ANSWER: It is the understanding that the erosion control panels were removed 
during a previous abatement. 

34. Building 130 - Will Brooks/UIW require all of the drop ceiling tile to be removed? 

ANSWER: Contractor will remove and dispose of as much drop ceiling as required 
to gain access to the ACM being removed.

35. Building 130 - Where does the ACM Removal of pipe finish for this building in regards 
to the tunnel in the crawl space.

ANSWER: Removal of ACM will not extend beyond the steam tunnel entrance and 
terminate at the tunnel “portal” approximately five (5) feet before the locked gate.  
The contractor is required to properly cap and seal the exposed insulation ends of 
the pipes leading into the tunnel. 

36. Building 130 - If the pipe needs to be removed in the tunnel, how far does it go?

ANSWER: Pipe in the tunnel is not part of this project.  See answer to question 
#35. 

37. Building 125 - How many mobilizations will be required to complete all of the 
abatement work? 

ANSWER: The number of mobilizations in buildings 110 and 130 will be 
determined by the contractor.  Building 125 will require scheduling with the 
tenants to coordinate where work areas will be mobilized and work area size.  At 
this time, no schedule with the Building 125 tenants has been established.  Assume 
at least four (4) mobilizations per floor in Building 125. 
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38. Building 125 - At the walk-through it was stated that one of the two freight elevators 
will be dedicated to the Abatement Contractor during each phase. Please verify.

ANSWER: Yes, one of the freight elevators will be dedicated to the Abatement 
Contractor. 

39. Is all of the drop ceiling expected to be removed to access and remove duct?  

ANSWER: Contractor will need to remove as much of the drop ceiling as is 
required to remove the ACM.  Also see answer to Question #35. 

40. How many phases are we looking at for this project?  

ANSWER: Assuming “phases” also means “mobilizations”, see answer to Question 
#37. 

41. Do we have how long this project is scheduled to take?   

ANSWER: The contractor will provide an estimate for the duration of the project.  
The length of time is currently expected to be approximately six (6) months but 
may be extended depending on scheduling with tenants in Building 125 and 
varying degrees of difficulty abating the ACM within buildings.  Consider possible 
nine (9) months as opposed to six (6) months to complete. 

42. How many mobilization are we looking at having?  

ANSWER: See answers to Questions #37 and #40. 

43. Are any of the mechanical systems (pipe/duct) that hold ACM, being demolished, or 
being reinsulated? 

ANSWER: At B125 ducts and pipe that have ACM insulation removed will need 
to be reinstated.  At B110 and B130 replacing insulation is not required. 

44. If so, that will affect the price of our prevailing wages.    

ANSWER: If the scope of work is increased, monetary compensation will increase.  
Please note, that the contractor will be notified of the SOW increase and asked to 
provide a separate cost estimate. 


